ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 27, 2017
3:17 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Sam Kito, Chair
Represent ati ve Adam Wol, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Louise Stutes
Representative Chris Birch
Representative Colleen Sullivan-Leonard

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Gary Knopp
Representative Bryce Edgnon (alternate)

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON ON RESIDENTI AL BU LDING CODES BY: MAX M ELKE
ALASKA PLUMBERS & PI PEFI TTERS

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

MAX M ELKE

Al aska Plunbers & Pipefitters, Local 262

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a presentation on residential building
codes.

BRAD AUSTI N, Training Coordinator

Al aska Plunbers & Pipefitters, Local 262

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered information during a presentation
on residential building codes and |i censi ng.

VWENDELL  WHI STLER, Al aska Joint El ectri cal Apprenticeship

Trai ning & Trust
Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- January 27, 2017



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on residential building codes.

JOHN PLUTT, Training Director

Plumbers & Pipefitters Apprenticeship and Journeyman Training
Cent er

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on residential building codes.

WALTER ROBI NSQON, Busi ness Representative

| nternational Brotherhood of Electrical W rkers (IBEW, Local
1547

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the |IBEW 1547 about
residential building codes.

DOUG TANSY, Busi ness Representative

International Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers (IBEW, Local
1547

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about residential building codes.

WAYLON KNUDSEN
Pal mer, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about residential building codes.

PATRI CK DALTON
Del ta Junction, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about residential building codes.

BRANDON MCGUI RE, Organi zer

Al aska Plunbers & Pipefitters, Local 367

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified about residential building codes.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:17:32 PM

CHAIR SAM KITO called the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:17 p.m Represent ati ves Wol ,
Josephson, Stutes, Birch, Sullivan-Leonard, and Kito were
present at the call to order.

PRESENTATI ON ON RESI DENTI AL BUI LDI NG CODES BY: MAX M ELKE
ALASKA PLUMBERS & Pl PEFI TTERS

3:17: 56 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- January 27, 2017



CHAIR KITO announced the only order of business before the
commttee would be a presentation on residential building codes.

3:18: 47 PM

MAX M ELKE, Al aska Plunbers & Pipefitters, Local 262, gave a
presentation on residential building codes. He stated that
Al aska Plunbers & Pipefitters, Local 262, does not oppose, in
general, the adoption of the International Residential Code
(IRC) and would support and help that decision. He stated his
desire to include the Universal Plunmbing Code (UPC) wth any
adoption of the IRC. He stated the UPC has been used in Al aska
for over 40 years. M. Melke stated that the codes work well
for the construction industry and |icensing provisions, but
there are sone gaps. Currently there are over 6,000 I|icensed
plunbers and electricians in Alaska and 1,500 nechanica
el ectrical and nechanical admnistrators that use "the codes."
Codes are inportant for licensed plunbers to ensure plunbing
systens are installed correctly.

3:22:48 PM
MR MELKE stated that the UPC and the National Electric Code

(NEC) use the nobst up to date technology and safety provisions
anywhere in the world and neet Anerican National Standard

Institute (ANSI) standards. He asserted that |licensing is
inportant for public safety and health. |If the IRC were adopted
wi thout licensing provisions for the UPC or NEC, it would be
conf usi ng. Al aska certificates of fitness are required for

el ectrical and plunmbing work in the state.
3:24: 33 PM

BRAD  AUSTI N, Tr ai ni ng Coor di nat or, Al aska Pl unber s &
Pipefitters, Local 262, stated that the qualifications for
plunbing and electrical I|icenses include conpletion of 8,000
training hours, upon which the person is issued a card by the
state. After the 8,000 hours, one can take the state plunbing
or electrical test to attain a certificate of fitness, which is

required before working for hire. He explained that a person
can plunb and wire his/her own house w thout the certifications.
Mechani cal Administrators nust have an administrator's license

in order to performwork.

3:25:57 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- January 27, 2017



REPRESENTATIVE BIRCH asked how publically funded projects
out si de an organi zed nunicipality are currently nonitored.

MR. AUSTIN stated that the Fire Marshall is involved in plan

revi ew. Specifications in the plan require Ilicensing, and
mechani cal contractors nust prove their |licensing, which the
state or city wll have owner representatives nonitor.
Engi neering inspections are conpleted by architects and
engi neers.
3:27:38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked M. Melke if he opposes the
i npl enmentation of the IBC codes and carving out a portion for
t he UPC.

MR MELKE clarified that the plunbing and electrical portions
of the IRC do not include licensing provisions. He stated he
would like the UPCto fit into that.

3:28:34 PM

CHAIR KITO asked if all nunicipalities that adopt their own
bui | di ng codes use the UPC.

MR. AUSTI N answered yes. He added that Anchorage adopted codes
through Title 23, and any reference to the International
Pl umbi ng Code or other codes reference the UPC. The adoption of
the IRC by the Departnment of Public Safety references the
statute that adopts the UPC He stated that is a pretty
st andard process.

CHAIR KITO asked if that is the case for residential codes that
are adopted by nunicipalities.

MR.  AUSTIN answered vyes, and added that the UPC covers
residential and conmerci al .

CHAIR KITO asked if licensed plunbers in Alaska are able to
construct a facility in accordance with the | RC

MR, AUSTIN answered that of the 6,000, about 1,200 are plunbers;

the rest are electricians. He stated that he is not sure how
using an international plunbing code mxed in with the UPC
[icensing would work. He noted there are many differences

bet ween the two codes regardi ng drai nage and venti ng.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -4- January 27, 2017



3:31:11 PM

MR. M ELKE added that the IRC is a less stringent code than the
UPC. He stated the | RC would not neet the sane standards as the
UPC.

CHAIR KITO asked if the plunbing portion of the IRC is not as
safe as the uniform code standard.

MR. M ELKE answered that he would have safety concerns with the
pl unbi ng portion of the IRC

3:32:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if adopting the I RC would reduce
quality in other specialties. He stated that the aim of the
potential legislation is to inprove quality, and he asked if
adopting the IRC woul d reduce quality in all specialties.

3:33: 29 PM

MR. AUSTIN answered that there are differences in the plunbing
sections of the codes and he is unsure of other specialties, but

he doesn't think there is an issue with building codes. He
stated a code is not instructions for a lay person to follow
it's very trade specific. He stated his concern regarding the

differences between the UPC and the IRC for plunbing, and
suggested his preference to inplenent code the sane way the
state adopted the international building code. 1In the IRC there
are nechanical systens which the state has already adopted. He
added that in addition to the UPC, other adopted codes i nclude
the Uniform Swi nm ng Pool, Spa, and Hot Tub Code and the Uniform
Sol ar Energy Code. He stated that there is likely also a fuel
and oil code. He conpared the IRC to a spider web, in that it
tries to cover everything on the building side. He suggested
that codes be referred to the departnents of each specialty.

3:35:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked whether the plunbing trade is
consi stent across the state.

MR. AUSTIN answered that plunbing, using the UPC is efficient,
fast, and technologically current. He informed that codes are
updat ed every three years.

3:37:31 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE - 5- January 27, 2017



CHAI R KI TO opened public testinony.
3:38:18 PM

VWENDELL  WHI STLER, Al aska Joint El ectri cal Apprenticeship
Training & Trust, testified about residential building codes.
He stated that the international codes are a weakening of the
el ectrical codes. In Fairbanks, there are a lot of unique
geographi cal issues, so local anendnents within the city limts
strengthen the national electric code. He stated his opposition
to adopting the electrical portion of the IRC He acknow edged
that if the infrastructure of a building is weak, then there is
no ability to expand or nodify w thout major reconstruction. He
inplored the conmmttee to maintain NEC as t he standard.

3:41:10 PM

JOHN  PLUTT, Trai ni ng Di rector, Pl unbers & Pipefitters
Apprenticeship and Journeyman Training Center, testified about
residential building codes. He stated that nmenbers of Plunbers
& Pipefitters have been trained on the UPC since its adoption in
the State of Al aska. In the Interior of Al aska, there are 300
state plunbing license holders and another 90 apprentices
working to attain that |icense. He stated his belief that the
UPC is a superior code to any other code, particularly the "I-
codes.” The training for plunbing |icensure nust be approved by
the State of Al aska, costs $100 per year, and requires 16 hours

of training every two years. The training allows plunbers to
get famliar with new technol ogies and updates in code. He
informed that the "I-codes" are less stringent. In the col der

weat her of the Interior, the Cty of Fairbanks uses the uniform
pl umbi ng codes and adds further requirenents. He stated that he
is not in favor of any code to take the place of the UPC
Changi ng the code would require a |large cost and new training.

3:44: 06 PM

WALTER ROBI NSQN, Busi ness Representati ve, | nt ernati onal
Br ot herhood of Electrical Wrkers (IBEW, Local 1547, testified
on behal f of |BEW 1547 about the use of the IRC. He stated that
he is not opposed to the use of the IRC so long as the NEC
remains the standard for electrical work in residential hones.
The NEC is the standard in Al aska, is what Al aska's electrical
wor kforce has trained and tested on, and is a standard
t hroughout the nation. He observed that |ast year Al aska had 17
fatalities from electrical fires in hones. He expressed it

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- January 27, 2017



would not be wise or ethical to lower the electrical work
standards for the state.

3:45:42 PM

DOUG TANSY, Business Representative, International Brotherhood
of Electrical Wrkers (IBEW, Local 1547, testified in favor of
keeping the NEC as the standard for electrical work in Al aska.
He added that nore oversight and inspection fromthe state would
avoid hone fires and fatalities. He urged striving towards the
hi ghest standards for the safety of Al askans.

3:47:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked M. Tansy if he would support the IRC
if the NEC is used for electrical standards.

MR. TANSY answered that is correct. He stated the IRC is fine
as long as nothing is done to weaken electrical standards or
pl unbi ng standards. The NEC was created as a safety provision
for the safe installation of electrical work - the residential
code is a weakening of the standard. He added that additional
codes are okay for the electrical professionals, as long as the
code is not changed fromthe NEC to the IRC

REPRESENTATIVE WOOL offered  his understanding that t he
testifiers, both plunbers and electricians, agree that the IRC
is less stringent than the current codes in use. He summari zed
the wtnesses' statenents that the international code is
general ly supported, but not for their specific trade. He asked
for confirmation that the NEC and UPC codes are nore stringent,
that that is how the professionals are trained and how they want
to continue to work

MR. TANSY stated that is correct for plunbing and electrica
trades, but he is not sure how the IRC would affect other
building trades. He reiterated that the NEC is the higher |eve
st andar d.

3:50:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Bl RCH stated his understanding that the potenti al
legislation ains to introduce sonme structure and guidelines in
areas w thout guidelines, particularly in rural areas. He asked
what the <cost differential is, and asked for M. Tansy's
perspective on introducing the IRC in places wthout any
standard code.

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- January 27, 2017



MR. TANSY replied that the state does have structure for all
el ectrical and plunbing work through licensing requirenents. He
stated his understanding that other parts of the honebuil ding
industry may not have structure, but there already is structure
with testing and licensing requirenents of the UPC and | RC

3:52:11 PM

WAYLON KNUDSEN testified about residential building codes. He
stated that as an electrician, he is required to have 16 hours
of continuing education to retain both his NEC based |icense and
fire alarm safety |I|icense. Both licenses are based off the
nati onal codes, not the international codes. The codes have
maj or differences in safety. He stated that the current codes
ensure safe installation and are specific to electrical work
nationally and |ocally. He informed that state building codes
apply statew de, though sone local nunicipalities and boroughs
adopt specific codes and standards. He stated his opposition to
adopting international codes for the electrical trade, as doing
so would reduce quality of installations in Al aska and would
open the door for wunlicensed electricians to perform unsafe
installations in the state.

3:54:18 PM

PATRI CK DALTON testified about residential building codes. He
stated the proposed l|egislation would inpose a uniform building
system upon unorgani zed and unrepresented areas of Al aska. He
poi nted out that organized areas are able to establish building
codes according to (indisc.) and constituents, which is a system
that works and doesn't need fi xing. He requested a poll about
i npl enenting a statewi de system and he predicted that those in
favor would be from organi zed areas of the state. He decl ared
that according to the Alaska Constitution, the legislature acts
as the borough assenbly for unorgani zed areas. Therefore, it is
the duty of nmenbers of the legislature to put aside the wi shes
of their own districts to see what the unorgani zed boroughs want
and need. He suggested that current organi zed areas should have
uni form systens, but unorgani zed areas should be left out. He
stated he is a nenber of an established voluntary internationa

system that could be a nodel for a voluntary type of code to
give people the option to conply voluntarily with a residentia

code.

3:57:29 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- January 27, 2017



CHAIR KITO asked for an explanation and the name of the
voluntary code available to people building in non-municipal
ar eas.

MR. DALTON stated he builds Ilog cabins and follows the
International Log Building Association's standards. It's a
voluntary organization that has established international
buil ding codes for |og building. Log builders who join, pay
fees, and becone certified are established with the association.
He suggested setting up a simlar statewide organization wth
certification cards that would incentivize reputable builders to
beconme certified. This would take the financial burden off the
State of Al aska. He added that inplenmenting a statew de system
in rural areas wouldn't work, would be very costly, and is
unwant ed.

3:59: 25 PM

BRANDON MCGUI RE, Organi zer, Al aska Plunbers & Pipefitters, Local
367, stated his opposition towards a nove from UPC to the
international code for the plunbing industry. He nentioned he
has spoken to many people involved in the plunbing industry,
including from Flint, Mchigan, who told him first-hand what
happens when you take for granted the health and safety of
community water and waste systens. He conpared the two
di fferent code books [UPC and IRC] - one is half as thick as the
ot her because it is not nearly as stringent. Renoving the
current policies wll reduce safety for citizens. He reiterated
that he is not in favor of nmoving fromUPC to | RC

4:01: 48 PM

CHAIR KITO clarified that the commttee is |ooking at adopting a
statewi de residential building code. He stated the commttee
has heard interest in having the plunbing and electrica

conponents be assigned to the UPC and the NEC He stated that
there is no plan to changing the codes that exist already for a
four pl ex and above.

4:02: 35 PM

CHAI R KI TO cl osed public testinony.

4:02:53 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- January 27, 2017



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor & Comerce Standing Comrittee neeting was adjourned at
4:03 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -10- January 27, 2017



